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CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) .. , Public Works and Traffic Committee Meeting for
March 22 nd is now in session. Good afternoon, Molokai, and thank you very
much for joining us on this wet and rainy Monday afternoon. I'm Mike Molina, the
Chair of the Committee, and at this time I'd like to turn the microphone over to
your area representative, Councilmember Danny Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good afternoon. I'd like to introduce the Members of the
Committee that's here with us this morning. You've already been introduced to
the Chairman of the Committee Mr. Molina, the Vice-Chairperson for this Public
Works Committee is from the Upcountry area, Charmaine Tavares. Committee
Members include from Hana, Mr. Bob Carroll; from Kahului area, Mr. Joe
Pontanilla.
CHAIR MOLINA: And Dain Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Missing ... not here and excused with us this afternoon is
Council Chair Dain Kane, as well as our Member from Lanai, Mr. Riki Hokama.
Nonmembers that are with us this afternoon on this Committee is from West
Maui, Jo Anne Johnson. And our staff with us this morning, the Legislative
Analyst for the Committee is Gary Saldana and our Committee Secretary Pauline
Martins.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Mateo. At this time the Chair will entertain
public testimony on any of our three items that we have before you. Before we
begin with public testimony, the Chair would like to ask for your indulgence that if
you have any cell phones or pagers, to please turn them off to minimize any
disruptions to our proceedings today. And the Chair will give you three minutes
to testify with one minute to conclude. And let me also mention we have from the
Corporation Counsel's Office for our proceedings today, Cindy Young. Let's
begin first with ... to testify first is Prisca Medeiros and she'll be testifying on Item
No. 21.
• . •BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. •.
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MS. MEDEIROS: Aloha. It's nice that our Council people can be here today. I'm sorry,
I must apologize. This is bad weather may maybe that, I think that's causing our
people to stay home. Okay. My concern is based on the landfill issue, okay. I
wrote several letters to our Mayor and, unfortunately, I'm not too happy with the
answer that we got because what we have here now it's a very critical, very, very
serious health hazard issue. And I think it needs to be handled and· all these
things be carted away as soon as possible. But I realize the reason why Maui is
hesitating is because they said that we don't have any money. But I feel that
there is money out there somewhere floating, but you need to know how to get it,
find it. And in the last letter, I told you that perhaps the way we can get our
money is if he should put some halt to some of his less pressing plans or projects
and divert the money into our direction. Okay. And right now, excuse me
please, I need to, to ask you four questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: I'm sorry, Ms. Medeiros-MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: --later on the, the questions to the Committee is actually reserved for
the Committee Members to ask, but you can share your concerns with us as it
relates to the question.
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. The first question is, do the Council have good news for us
today? And what. .. the second question is, what concrete assurance can the
Council give us that our stockpile issue will be solved? And the third is how long
will Maui treat this issue as it continues pending topic on his agenda, and
realizing this issue is a critical and health hazard, when will Molokai be realized
with definite assured financial help? I know you people probably will place this
on the Maui's budget plan but, you know, facts and figures goes to the payment,
it's good, but we know that this is all subject to change. And I also, when I
wrote--could I read this letter? Okay. "Dear Mayor Arakawa, no doubt you must
be a man of vision and I presume you had envisioned what you had"-MR. SALDANA: Three minutes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Medeiros, you have one more minute to conclude.
MS. MEDEIROS: Excuse me?
CHAIR MOLINA: You have one more minute to finish up, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: She cannot hear good.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, you got one more minute to finish.
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MS. MEDEIROS: One more minute?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, go ahead continue and finish your letter.
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, I'm, I'm going to just read the end because there's one, one
more minute, okay. "Presently, we have is a very critical health hazard issue
concerning our stockpile, and you have done nothing about this since my first
apprisal of this great concern. I feel the only way this matter could be handled
and brought to realization if you put a halt to some of your less--but I've
mentioned that already. And to divert the money to our way and make this your
priority", okay. I think that's the only thing I feel that, you know, that he needs to
do. What else can you do? Maui is our source and our supplier, and if we can't
go to Maui for our health, where else can we go, right?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mrs. Medeiros. Committee Members,
do you have any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much.
Next to testify we have Debra Spencer.
MS. SPENCER: My name is Debra Spencer. Good morning, Chairman, Danny Mateo
and Committee Members.
CHAIR MOLINA:' Oh, excuse me, Ms. Spencer, can you bring the-MS. SPENCER: Sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: No, that's okay. Can you bring the mike up better so we can hear you
loud and clear. There you go.
MS. SPENCER: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Tammy, you can restart then.
MS. SPENCER: Okay. My name is Debra Spencer. I am the Maui Economic
Opportunity Branch Director for Molokai. Good morning, Chairman, Danny
Mateo and Committee Members. I'm in support of agenda item PWT-32 work
exempt from permit. I am testifying on behalf of MEO. First of all, may I extend
my appreciation to Council member Danny Mateo for taking the leadership on this
issue for the community. It may seem like a small thing, but for many small and
nonprofit organizations, getting all the permits needed for community events can
sometimes seem like more work than the event itself, even though we
understand that all the rules need to be followed for health and safety reasons.
So we thank you for working to make it easier for us to be of service to the
community. This bill will be of great help and simplify the process for us. I
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respectfully request that the Public Works and the Traffic Committee approve this
bill and forward it to the full Council for recommendation for passage. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Ms. Spencer. Committee Members, any
questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Prior to hearing from our
next testifier, those of you who just walked into the room and would like to testify,
you can sign up over there at the table towards my left. Testifying on Item No.
23, we have Bill Feeter.
MR. FEETER: Aloha kakou auinala(?), distinguished members of the Maui County
Council and ladies and gentlemen. Article 23 relates to flooding and I'll, I'll just
read my comments to save time. Before contact, the chief of an ahupua 'a was
responsible for the care of his land and water and to sustain the natural bounty
Management of those living resources was inseparable from
they're in.
spirituality. Ask before you take, and there was respect. Ecosystems and
economics work together. The chiefs and citizens of today have that same need
of stewardship. Start with the top of the ahupua 'a and go to the reef. Reforest,
control feral animals, control habitation and development, control pollution,
control runoff, which is smothering our reef. It is a slow process but we must
start now. The future of tourism, I mentioned economics and environment go
together. The future of tourism, if we choose that, is going to be smaller, more
private, private places where people can readily immerse themselves in the
beauty and the uniqueness of this island Molokai. I'd like to leave you with one
thought, unlimited human capacity to ignore reality. That is behind us, we must
move on. May I hand you some handouts from our beloved Kumuhula John
Kaimikaula(?)? He addresses this I think most succinctly and is now time to act.
I realize that you folks do not have the wherewithal at this moment, but let's seek
all levels including Congress, State level, education of all of us here and ongoing.
The flooding is not a matter of building bridges, it's riot a matter of spending
thousands of dollars pushing dirt around month after month, and you came at a
good time. I would like to have you drive out just to Kawela Bridge, hopefully it'll
be flooding as it has over the past years. It must start with the top and work
down with these recommendations. These are not my recommendations, they
are readily available from bonafide scientists, observers, farmers, people that live
here, as well as in other places. And may I hand you these. Thank you very
much for your attention.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Feeter. Committee Members, any
questions for the testifier? Okay, thank you. Thank you. Next to testify we have
Zhantell Dudoit, and she'll be testifying on Item 32. Again those of you who
might have just walked in, if you'd like the opportunity to testify, towards my left is
the sign-up area. Proceed.
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MS. DUDOIT: Aloha, Council Members, my name is Zhantell Dudoit. I am the Public
Relations & Marketing Director from ...and .co-owner of Molokaievents.com, and
we produce events throughout the island, a lot of which uses here OED funding
for nonprofit organizations. So this matter is very important to us, and I'd like to
stand in support of the ordinance change and let you know that by doing this, it
really helps us to be able to have quicker response time to events and, and use
the County's funding efficiently. And I would just like to add really quickly that as
we, you look at the change in this ordinance, perhaps not this time, but for further
review of this section of the ordinances . .. And I read, I got a copy of the
complete ordinance, and I don't see anywhere in here where it says that first time
applicants to any event need to go through the permitting process. As an event
manager, I believe that it is critically important that even the easy up structures
that if only them or if a person is going to, with the exception of parties and
private parties and things like that. But for ongoing events, events that or, or big
events in the park, it's important to have a first-time permitting process where
people go in and layout and tell you what the layout is going to look like, you
know. So I, I didn't read it. I may have missed it, and I didn't read it in here, but I
think that's a very important part to look at in the ordinance, that if we change this
to say that everybody is exempt from this, the non profits, and County events on
County property, that's a good thing. But for first-time event users, I think that
this permit process is a very important step. The second thing if, if you have any
control over as an event organizer, we would like you to look at is that the
permitting process that the County makes you go through in order to have events
on County facilities are very, very long and, and they're hard to obtain and when
you get OED funding from the County. So this is just several areas to look at.
When we get OED funding or grant money from the County, we are required to
pay the County for usage of their own facilities and that doesn't seem to make
too much sense to me. On top of that, when you're required to apply or when
you apply for OED funding, they ask you for very specific dates as to when you
can have it in order to get this funding. Now what makes that difficult is then you
have to go in for permitting which is an undisclosed amount of time that that
takes. So the conflict is how the inter-department areas and branches of the
County work together. So just for reference, if you're looking at permitting
processes and ordinances, it might be helpful to look at those too. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you very much, Zhantell. Committee Members, have
any questions for the testifier? Okay. Hold on, Zhantell. Zhantell, come, we
have one question from Committee Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Zhantell, not a question, but the recommendations that
you have provided for us this afternoon. Could you put it in writing and submit it
to us?
MS. DUDOIT: Sure. We actually have ...
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?: .... (inaudible) ...
MS. DUDOIT: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: You did?
MS. DUDOIT: We actually submitted a letter, but thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thanks a lot, Zhantell. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Item 32, we have Wayde Lee.
MR. LEE: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Wayde Lee, and I'm thankful that you
could come out this wet day. And maybe I can give some explanation at the later
on meeting, but I'm, I'm going to testify on that Item 32. I represent Makahiki as
a board member. We've been putting on an event for many years, over 25 years
already, and it's been very difficult each year to fill out this permit process. And
I'm not sure. I didn't get an ordinance like she did, the whole ordinance but just
by hearsay on the committee we tossed it around and it was like we couldn't
even advertise before the permit process was over and that was brought a great
concern to us being that, you know, Molokai is, you going have one booth? Oh,
yeah, I going see if my committee is ready. And most of the people who do
fundraisers here, we give first chance first to Molokai High School, that we
support our kids first to be able to sell their stuffs. The next is Molokai vendors,
yeah. Baseball. But the kids were first and makes it hard for us to put on an
event with our volunteers and then we gotta go track this permit process for it.
And if we going do that, then we gotta hire somebody, and we just taking money
away again from the kids and then it becomes a whole mess. But, you know, on
this island it's pretty much everybody just kokua and try get this event over and
give up educational as well as cultural and plus financial backing so that we kind
of alleviate some pressure off of the Council always funding us or funding all of
us. But on Molokai, you know, if not for. .. 1 believe if not for these signature
events, a lot of our high school kids, a lot of our baseball teams would not be
able to exist. They totally strive, most of them, upon fund raisers that we do here.
And we only cost, we only charge them $25 and that fee is for somebody to
come here and put up ... the EZ-Up for us. So we actually making nothing off of
the, and we don't really care if we make anything. The, our basic is for education
and if somebody can make a, nonprofit can make a little money, especially our
kids, maika'i. Yeah. So I think this is a great passage and I thank, I thank
Danny. This is a well overdue. We were, this year we really concerned about
our permits, and we just made it in the knick of time, and we kind of was at this
thing to ask for forgiveness than permission. We're at that state, you know, and
I'll be quite frank with you because it's pretty hard putting on an event with all
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volunteers and just trying to get it together. So I, my request is that you please
pass out this bill. The way it is is maika'i. Okay, mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Wayde. Committee Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify we have Curtis Crabbe, and,
Curtis, my understanding is you'll be testifying on two items, Items 21 and Items
32.
MR. CRABBE: How about delete 32?
. CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so just on 21. Okay, thank you.
MR. CRABBE: Aloha, County Council Members, my name is Curtis Crabbe. I'm the
owner of Molokai Portable Toilets and Pumping Service, and we do, basically,
every kind of pumping you can think of, including waste oil and all that kind of
good stuff. But my written testimony is here. I'll have it for you. I will be bidding
as a subcontractor to dispose of the fluids, waste oil, and antifreeze and
automotive car batteries and tires on this project that's going to be opening up on
April 6. Okay. As a Molokai resident, owning and operating my business here
on Molokai, I have had the opportunity to engage with regards to strategies to
obtain work for my firm with larger off-island companies who would bid as my
prime contractor or general contractor of the project.
Present it is my
understanding that you, the Council, that appropriate only $500,000 for the entire
scope of the project to dig, is that correct? Is that correct, the 500,000?
CHAIR MOLINA: Approximately.
MR. CRABBE: Okay, it's for Molokai only, okay. I'm here to tell you that $500,000 is
unrealistic. I'm here not to contend with the manner, which was attained to arrive
at this amount. I'm here to tell you it's, I'm, I just want to tell you that it's a totally
unrealistic for the cleanup of this magnitude.
For your information, my
anticipated cost for the fluid, waste oil and antifreeze and batteries and tires,
which is maybe a third of the work, would total about $150,000, disposing
everything according to the EPA and hazardous waste issues, okay. Over this
and to and from Molokai for the general contractor for the equipment and barges
would run approximately 75 to $100,000 alone. So it'll leave you basically 250 to
do your project to clean up all the white pile you saw and all the steel. In short
__ , the simple mathematical calculation reveal that it leaves this scope of work
an amount of $50 per ton to dispose of as you wish to do it. Okay. Given these
amounts are estimates, please understand that more monies are required to do
this project completely. I have done 25, I have over 25 years in doing business
with the State of Hawaii and all the counties, including Maui. I still do as the
electrical contractor, okay, and performing construction contracts as a prime and
as a sub. I know the intricacies of government contracting can severely deter
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most contractors. However these, those who stick with the process can be very
profitable over a long period of time. I have brought and have been party to
several lawsuits against government entities--not Maui yet, not Maui yet okay-over bid bonds and time extensions requested from using agencies to extend the
time of acceptance for contracts as one as such because in your contract
specifications, it says you going need County approval for the contract to be let. I
also know that thousands of dollars are paid to attorneys on both sides can be
saved with planning on using the agencies part, in this case it would be the Maui
County. So in my closing here, I said, "Please do your best to secure more
funding so that you can do your entrusted job that is to clean up the dump."
That's my closing testimony.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Curtis. Committee Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. CRABBE: I just want to prepare now so, you know, no have to keep on asking the
contractor one month, two months and by the time they go and extended over
cost. You folks have been there already, right? Kalama Park-CHAIR MOLINA: Right. Okay. Thank you. Next to testify on Item No. 23, we have
Annette Pauole-Ahakuelo.
MS. PAUOLE-AHAKUELO: Good afternoon and aloha, Councilmen and ladies. My
name is Annette Pauole-Ahakuelo, and I recently moved back to Molokai after
being gone for almost over 30 years. And I was really blessed and fortunate
enough to, to get a home here on Molokai. And I've put my, practically all of my
life savings into this home as well as, you know, I really love this home. Okay. I
live on Seaside Place down here in Kaunakakai, and I have never in my life
experienced the kind of flooding that's been happening here on Molokai. I
understand it's going to rain, you're gonna get wet, it's going to get muddy, but
the flooding here is ridiculous: I mean it's really, really bad. And someone told
me last year, oh, Annette, don't worry about it, it only happens once every ten
years or every, you know, 15 years. Well, it happened again in January. So that
was the fastest ten years I ever saw pass by, and the thing about this rain that
happened in January was that it was so bad and what the most frustrating thing
about the rain was there was no one, except I have to say, Steven Arce and his
staff to help us. You know, we didn't know where to get sandbags. We didn't
even know there was no Civil Defense, there was no Red Cross, there was no
one to help us, not even, not even the Police Department could help us. All they
could do was try to find Steven Arce. So I'm saying for my neighborhood, I'm
speaking on behalf of my family and friends, lifelong friends, who've lived here for
generations that, you know, we need your help to appropriate funds to help us
with this flooding. Now some old timers brought me pictures which I didn't show
the Council people this morning when they came to my home, but it was taken
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like eight years ago and it looked practically identical to the rain that happened
just this past January. So it seems like, you know, nothing's being done and, you
know, I'm here today, humbly here to ask you on behalf of the--not only the
Molokai, the Seaside people where I live, the residents--but the entire island of
Molokai that something has to be done. You know, all of our life savings, we
work hard, and here we're all retiring pretty soon and, and now we have to fight
to save our homes. I mean this past January, not only myself, but my neighbors,
we all would congregate three days in a row two, three o'clock in the morning
trying to save our houses. And I really feel that, that something has to be done
and when someone mentioned to me that they're starting something with the
Corps of Engineers and it will start 20 years ago, I couldn't believe it. They didn't
even finish it yet to help Kapaakea area. I mean so what, I humbly asking you
today is that all of the agencies-- whether they're County, the State, the Federal
or whoever they might be--is get together and step up to the plate and help-MR. SALDANA: Three minutes.
MS. PAUOLE-AHAKUELO: --Molokai. But anyway, I have pictures here if you folks
want to see and also, too, I have a lot of residents here on Molokai, I have over
200 plus signatures here of people who couldn't attend today because they are
working who really humbly ask you for your help. And I'm gonna submit this to
our Council person, of course, Mr. Mateo, and by the way, I have to tell you that
Danny was here that weekend when we had that terrible rain to see the mess we
were in. So, I thank you for that, Danny, for caring. I really humbly do, but all I
ask is just to help us save our homes. And I don't think anyone else in this room
can say any more than we're asking you for a basic thing, just help us. And
thank you very much for coming out today.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Annette. Committee Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify on Item No. 23, we have Uko
Wallace.
MS. WALLACE: Good afternoon. My-CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Uko, can you talk into the microphone please, yeah?
There we go. Oops. Okay, there we go. We can restart her time.
MS. WALLACE: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Uko.
MS. WALLACE: Good afternoon. Basically, the first thing I wanted to say was I'm
back. This is not my first time referring to this area as Seaside Place, the
flooding that took place in 1996, 1997 where I had to repeatedly come to the
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Council several times to explain the situation. I sent pictures, I sent letters to all
the people that I was told to report to and to notify about the incidents, but back
then I basically stood alone. So it was just myself and I went through Pat
Kawano at that time who was our Councilman and Danny who was by his side,
and I went through their Council to help me figure out who to notify. I went
through all the procedures, attended all the meetings, took pictures, had them
come over take a look and basically at that time, my plea was that the road when
they had repaved, they didn't do the necessary digging up of the old pavement
before they repaved, and because of that now my property sits lower than the
road. So now when the water comes into the property, it has nowhere, nowhere
of escaping. The only way we can get the water out of our property is to literally
push it or pump it out. And like, and I had mentioned in January of that really bad
storm that we had, to our luck it happened on a Friday and basically thank you to
the County people who could help us pump, and they only have like two pumps
or three pumps or something. They have to go by priority, and another neighbor
of ours the water was like right in their whole house. They had basically... you
know, we can understand, it would go to the person that desperately needs it
more, although we sat in that water for over a week before it was able to clear
from our properties. So, I would say a lot of it came down from how we were
explaining this morning from, the runoffs from Ranch Camp and as it fills up the
lower lane, lower lying areas like the Kaunakakai School and the ball park. Once
it gets to a level where it cannot take it anymore, it just bursts right through and
this time it flooded basically our whole neighborhood. So at the, the first time it
happened, I was asked to draw a diagram of what could be done to help deter
the water away from our property. And it seems like it was pretty simple, just
some kind of a culvert or something that would lead it to the one and only
drainage that we have on our lane, which can't seem to compensate for the
water that is coming down. So my plea is that the Council would take into-MR. SALDANA: Three minutes.
MS. WALLACE: --consideration our plea on doing something on the flooding situation.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Liko. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Liko is the last person to have signed up for testimony.
The Chair will give one last opportunity to the public if they'd like to testify on any
item. You can come up and testify and then sign up after you're done. Please
go ahead and state your name for the record.
MS. BUCHANAN: Hi, my name is Lori Buchanan, I'm a resident of Molokai. I just·
wanted to thank Councilman Mateo for bringing these items to the Council's
attention, and I wanted to thank all of you for coming to Molokai today and this
evening for your Budget hearing. I would like to speak in favor of the
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Councilman's ordinance for the temporary tents. I think it's long overdue. On
Molokai we're already disadvantaged and then to tax us with excessive
permitting process, and I know this only pertains to the tents, but I'm sure you're
going to hear the whole slew of how hard it is to go through a permitting process
for an eight~hour event. It's not fun and it's very, very taxing. And the Council
needs to do something to streamline this process for nonprofit organizations, as
well as anybody that just does an eight-hour fundraising type of event. Whether
it's either cancer people, Earth Day conservation people; whoever it is, 'cause
every year you don't want to be the person that has to do all that paperwork. I
mean you gotta pay me to go and do that paperwork for an eight-hour event. But
thank you, Danny, for bringing the landfill issue to the Council. I hardly go to the
landfill. There's a reason why, 'cause I just don't want to look at it when I go
there, and I went the other day and I couldn't believe it. You saw it today. Does
yours on Maui look like that? No. And look at the number, we have 7,000
people here and look at how our landfill looks like. Okay. The other thing is the
flooding. I live up in Kalae and I couldn't get flooding insurance 'cause I'm not in
the flooding area but guess what? My house is situated underground with hollow
tile an it floods every three days it rains. But I also have to drive to the East End
sometimes to work, and I found myself stuck on the side of the road in flooding
conditions. Flash flooding conditions. And I know the problem that the residents
who've had their homes flooded and I'm not an engineer, but it seems common
sense is number one, keep your culverts clean. Number two, keep your rivers
opened up. It seems simple enough, but if this basic things are taken cared of,
that yvould help alleviate the flooding problem, of course. Common sense, right?
I know in Kawela where they had a big flooding problem, everybody's pointing
fingers at each other. Department of Interior is pointing to the County, County's
pointing to the State, the State is pointing to the Kawela Plantation landowners.
You know what, everybody gotta kukakuka and figure something out because
everybody's roadway on the bottom of Kawela Plantation turns into a river. You
can see the coconut trees in the ocean, you can see new land being formed.
Who owned that land now out by the mouth of the river? So it's just, you know,
we one small island and we can only ask the Council for help. So, I just thank
you guys fqr coming today. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mahalo, Lori. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Next to testify on Item 23, we have Paul Mokuau.
MR. MOKUAU: Aloha. I'm here to testify on the flood on the Seaside Place. And-CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Paul, can you come close, bring the mike closer to you?
There we go.
MR. MOKUAU: Oh, yeah. I can talk loud now.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We will restart your time. Go ahead.
MR. MOKUAU: Okay. And here's some of the pictures that they took of my place. It's
pretty much damaged, yeah, and a real beating. So we had to spend three days
like that before they pumped our place out and spoil our food because the
electrical outlet was kind of like pretty much close to it. So we never like, you
know, the electric, it might shock the shit out of us, you know. I'm sorry about the
language. But I really think that something should be done to make it better
where it doesn't have to, you know, put up again like this. Well, anyway, I've
been living there almost five years and the neighbor next door told me that it's
hardly the case that something like this happen. And my understanding that it's
pretty much sure that you guys can do something about it, if it's a possibility, and
I'm just here to express a little bit of myself about the homes like that, you know.
Because if you live under the water three days in the house like that, you know,
it's pretty long and it was like smelly after the flood, and it took me couple of days
to just get, get myself going again, yeah. And it's pretty much damaged some
other places around, the plants and stuff, and the things that I had in the house
that, you know, we had for so long, yeah, and ruined, stuff like that. So, that's all
I have to say for now, you know, and hopefully everything goes alright after this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MOKUAU: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Mokuau. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Committee Staff, do we have anyone else signed up for
testimony? Okay. Members of the public, this is your last opportunity to sign up
for testifying on each of our three agenda items. Is there anyone else? The
Chair seeing none, if there are no objections, Committee Members, we will close
public testimony for our agenda items today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .
• . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .•
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you very much, Members. And thank you members of
the public for sharing your mana '0 with the Committee today.

ITEM NO. 32:

WORK EXEMPT FROM PERMIT (TEMPORARY TENTS) (C.C. 04-68)

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, before we start with our first item which is Item 32 on the
work exempt from permit, the temporary tents, the Chair would like to inform you
that we do have a Budget meeting at six o'clock tonight. So the Chair's intention

- 13 -

PUBLIC WORKS AND TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 22, 2004 (Molokai)

is to adjourn by 5:00 or close to it to give the Members a chance to take their
dinner break as well as staff. So let's proceed with this first item and we have
from the Director of Public Works, the Director Mr. Coloma-Agaran, and to also
add his thoughts onto the matter. But before that, I'd like to briefly share the
background on this item.
The Committee is in receipt of a proposed bill by Councilmember Mateo that
would exempt from building permit requirements the installation of temporary
tents for events sponsored by nonprofit organizations and events on County
property that do not exceed 72 hours. Currently only family parties, camping and
tents that are removed by 6:00 p.m. on the same day of installation are exempted
from obtaining building permits. Members, in your binder you will find the memo
dated March 18, 2004 outlining a comparison of temporary tent requirements of
neighboring counties. Before recognizing the Director, I'd first like to ask
Councilmember Mateo for comments. Councilmember Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. I guess the intent and the purpose
of this particular temporary tents ordinance, Mr. Chair, was to deal with the many
concerns and complaints we are getting from specifically our community. The
permitting process is a lengthy one and a lot of our, a lot of our community
people really have a difficulty in actually trying to complete the burdensome, that
burdensome process. Part of our difficulty is that the individuals that we need to
help us in completing the processes are not here on this island. They're on a
neighbor island and it just adds and compounds the difficulty in trying to actually
get· through this particular process. And I think it's an advantage for our
community because the large number of functions that we have are primarily the
established nonprofits. These are the non profits that have on an annual basis
activities on ... I guess periods of, a calendar period where we know in advance
that it's happening, and we're talking about functions like the Makahiki and Aloha
Festivals and the, the Hula Piko and all these celebrations. And this is a yearly
event and nothing changes, except the burdensome permitting process. So with
that, Chair, I will look forward to the Director's comments.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Council member Mateo. At this time the Chair
will ask the Director of the Public Works and Environmental Management
Department, Mr. Coloma-Agaran to share his thoughts on this matter.
Mr. Director.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If you'll look at our letter of
February 24, 2004, which summarizes your comments.
As noted, the
Department's concerns regarding temporary tents and the regulation of those
temporary tents. One, was in response to concerns about preventing those tents
from becoming a flying hazard to people and from causing property damage.
And, also, generally that any tent legislation should be enforced equitably and
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consistently by the building inspectors. With that in mind, our comments on the
proposal. First, we would think that you would need to do a definition of
"nonprofit organizations". The term is problematic during enforcement.
Also, we do have some concerns about the rationale for separating nonprofit
organizations from other for-profit events, such as fund raisers for several
organizations and schools which also might be dependent on the same type of
volunteers or board members that might also have some problems in getting
through the permitting process that you've raised concerns about.
The reason for requiring a building permit is not whether the tent user is making a
profit or not. It's, it's for safety. Secondly, the exemption for 14 days, this 14-day
grace period can't be enforced without documenting when the grace period
begins. As you, as noted from the comments from one of the other islands which
has a similar 14-day grace period, they do have some problems with that, with
enforcing that and they depend on basically the complainant who claims that the
tent's been up for more than 14 days as a witness in order to enforce that
provision.
,We have no objections to the unconditional exemption for all tents that are
erected on County parks or recreational faCilities, and that's based on the
assumption that the Department of Parks and Recreation can inspect those tents
as necessary for safety. We would note that the way the language has been
written, the proposed amendment would delete the exemption that was originally
intended for single-day events, such as the Wil Wong's Maui Swap Meet next to
the Kahului Post Office, huli-huli chicken fundraisers, and keiki birthday parties at
beaches. In general, those would be our comments on the proposed ordinance.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Director, and you referenced
concerns expressed from other islands. Members, for your information, that's on
your March 18 transmittal in your binder. Committee Members, any questions for
the Director at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Director, on your letter, on
your letter of February 24, your No. 1 item referencing nonprofit organizations.
Nonprofit organizations already, there is an existing definition that already exists
for, for the County, particularly when the County deals with grant awards through
a specific department. Also, your, your concern that schools might not be
recognized as a nonprofit organization. Schools are, the majority of schools are
nonprofit organizations because the majority of them do hold their 501 (c)3 status.
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Your concern for Item No.2, I would have no problem in deleting all references to
the 14 consecutive days in the bill as long as we would continue to recognize the
72-hour time limit as identified in the, in the proposed ordinance. I guess those
two would be my only comments at this time, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Director, any response from Councilmember Mateo's comments?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN: I believe that Corp. Counsel can address the question about
the nonprofits definition. The timing, again, we just want to make sure that that
the language is clear enough so that if there are enforcement issues that they
can be enforced equitably.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Director. Corp. Counsel, can you comment?
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, we would suggest that a definition be
included in the bill and that definition we would suggest be consistent with
Title 13, Section 13.04.020 of the Maui County Code which defines a similar, a
similar name which is nonprofit entity. And it would define it as an entity, which
complies with Section 501 (c) of the Internal Revenue Code and any other
requirements under Federal, State, and County law regulating the conduct of
charitable or nonprofit organizations. And if that comports with the Council's
intent with this particular exemption, then I would suggest using that language.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Corp. Counsel. Committee Members,
any other questions for the Director or Corporation Counsel on this item? The
Chair has just one question for Corporation Counsel. I know it may be somewhat
of a loaded question, but can you foresee any potential legal problems with
exempting nonprofit organizations versus not exempting for-profit organizations
or businesses? If it's somewhat loaded and you need more research, would you
prefer to respond in writing to that •• . (CHANGE TAPE) • .•
MS. YOUNG: --research into that issue. And just on the issue of ... just as a very
general matter, it would seem within the purview of the Council to set forth an
exemption for nonprofits, if it's all fit for a public purpose, which would all sensibly
be to allow for nonprofits to have these kinds of events in, you know, and that the
process would be more timely, time efficient.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Corporation Counsel. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Maybe I can continue with Corp.
Counsel. Because one of the items identified in the ordinance is that in addition
to nonprofits, it is specific to us, a location, County facilities, County parks. So
is ... you know, would Corp. Counsel see any problem with any kind of, say,
concern with nonprofits versus private entities? I guess what I'm trying to say, do
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you think this bill would seem discriminatory because it provides a specific use
to, for non profits in a specific location which should all be County facilities?
MS. YOUNG: The current language of the, of the bill does not, does not limit the
nonprofits' event that are exempt from requiring a building permit. It does not
only cover those events that take place at a County park or recreational facility.
It would exempt all nonprofit events regardless of where it took place. Say even
if it took place on purely private property, it still would be exempted according to
the current language of the bill. If the Council wanted, we could redraft it to, to
have it only pertain to the County park and recreational facility areas that would
exempt nonprofit organizations. And naturally right now, all, all entities would be
exempt from having to get a building permit for activities taking place in a County
park or recreational facility. And not just nonprofits, but all entities.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Corporation Counsel. We have a question from
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One of the things that I was wondering about is that
when we have events that take place on County property, I think one of the
concerns we always have, at least the things that I've worked with, with Parks
and Recreations is liability. Like if when they're erecting a tent, they go through
an irrigation line. Other kinds of potential damage that could occur if there is an
injury if the tent's stakes were not property inserted. A lot of times now what
we're doing is on County parking lots even, we're requiring the big heavy ballast
to be placed so that the tents don't become airborne.
On private property, I don't have as much a concern only because if you're giving
a private party and there's no permit required for this, it's up to you to provide
your own liability coverage and protection. So I'm not as concerned about that.
The large tents where there's, you know, maybe an event going on, and I think
that that is something that, you know, really maybe concerns the Fire Department
when it's over a certain square footage tent. I think that where they're doing
events underneath there, that is important for them to I think make sure that it's
safe. Because if a tent would collapse or if there was a huge windstorm, you
know, you wouldn't want to have a big problem like that. So, I think from my
perspective what I'm looking at is the liability issue and tying it to the
responsibility when it takes place on County property.
So those would be issues that I would have with this particular bill. I don't mind
that it's, you know, an event that may, 'cause sometimes nonprofits aren't the
only ones doing these events. Maybe it's another organization that might want to
have like an informational health fair. It could be a public organization. It could
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be just a group of local residents getting together and having, you know,
something on their own property.
My personal feeling about these issues, because of what we've talked about in
Parks Committee, is that if it's something that's taking place on private property,
you can have a requirement limiting the number of days 'cause you don't want
people to have tents up and then be living underneath them. That would be one
restriction. I don't think it's so important if it's of a certain size if it's on any public
property whatsoever, I think if they want to be exempted, then they should
provide some kind of coverage. A policy or usually whether it's nonprofit or for
profit, almost always people will purchase a temporary coverage that's a rider
that would protect them while that event is going on, and then I think in those
situations usually what we were asked to do as the nonprofit is provide a copy of
the coverage stating that we name the County as an additional insured. So that
might be one way to approach this.
But the only other question I had and this might be to you, Danny, when you're
looking at this, I know that some of these tent structures now, they're kind of
cropping up all over the whole County and what I've seen them on other islands
too. And I don't know if anywhere in your bill this addresses this, but one of the
things I'm concerned about is now these temporary, I call them like tent
structures that they use for keeping vehicles and other things. It's sort of
becoming a secondary garage and I have seen those things just go flying. So I
don't know if there's something that while they're looking at the bill, we can
address that, the proliferation of those kinds of things .. And if there is a specific
permit that's required, you know, or a special kind of tie-down to prevent, you
know, neighborhoods from just looking really unsafe. I know we even did this I
think for the, wasn't it for the fire or our department for some covering over
our .. .I guess our vehicles. So anyway those would be only my concerns and,
and my issues having to do with the parks.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Member Johnson. Thank you, Chair. Thank
you, Member Johnson. I believe the, their actual request, the State requires the
inspection process, and it will still be their responsibility in securing the liability
coverages, you know, for both County and their own safety. So those aspects
were items that, you know, had not, we didn't try to omit altogether. It was just
going through that bulky permit processes that we were looking at. And I agree
with you there's a lot of so-called temporary tents that have become permanent
tents. And, you know, one of the, one of those in particular, you know, that
maybe we can take a look at is like I would think that Pukoo Station that houses
our fire truck. So we just need to take a look at all of it altogether and see what
kind of impacts temporary tents, you know, have on, on all of the departments as
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well. So I guess just to kind of clarify your issues, the updated insurance would
still be required and inspection would still be required as well. Thank you. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo.
questions? Member Tavares.

Committee Members, any other

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Thank you, Chair. I think ... oh, I'm sure we're gonna have
discussions more as we take this around the County. 'think this is the first
hearing that we're having on this particular issue. 'would ask the Members to
consider a tent is a tent is a tent and who is requesting the tent is secondary to
what the tent is used for and what the size of it is. I think that if we were to pass
this for nonprofits, I didn't notice that there was a size limiting. Was there a size
limitation on these tents? I didn't see it in the ordinance, but' will have a concern
that something as big as the County Fair which has huge tents would be able to
erect these without any kind of permit. 'think we need to know what is the
purpose of even requiring the building permit in the first place? What is our
concern? I remember that one time when we had the County Fair the first, I think
it was the first year or the second year that it was held at War Memorial, the Fire
Department almost shut the fair down and the reason was that in the food tent
where people were eating, there were no exit signs because the Code says
every tent shall have an exit sign, whether it has sides or not has nothing to do
with it. So we had to run around and get exit signs and fire extinguishers for that
tent, which is a little ludicrous for you and me.· But perhaps between the Public
Works Department and the Fire Department we can come up with something
where tents of certain sizes for certain durations should be exempted from
something, or only use a fire permit of some kind. But I don't believe that a
nonprofit should have any other, any, any more of an advantage or less of a
requirement than anybody else because a tent is a tent. And if they're all the
same size, why is the nonprofit not getting, not required to do it, do a permit
because quite frankly, the non profits don't have the expertise within them. I
mean they're there to put on an event, whereas some of the private entities they
hire professional people to put their tents up. So, I would be more trusting of a
tent that was put up by a professional than a tent that was put up by a number of
volunteers, whatever their intentions are. So, I would ask that we look at this, Mr.
Chair, and actually ask the Fire Department and the building, the Development
SeNices Administration, if they could give us a rationale as to why a permit is
required, a building permit is required in the first place for a tent. And then ask
the Fire Department to please comment upon whether or not we can come up
with a permit that would be under the Fire Department, rather than under the
DSN [sic], DSA Department. 'Cause I think it's public health and safety that's a
concern here and the Fire Department certainly has a lot to say about erection of
tents and its safety features or lack thereof. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Committee Members, any other
comments or questions on this matter? The Chair would like to, will honor your
request, Member Tavares, and Member Johnson also brings up a good point
about the temporary tents that people have been using for vehicles. I know
Oahu County had some major concerns there. So we'll also solicit comments,
not only from Oahu County, but the other counties as well. So at this time, if the
Members don't have any other comments or questions or any other concerns
expressed by the Department, the Chair's recommendation for this, is this is the
first time we've brought this item out to the public and being that this proposed
ordinance would be Countywide, the Chair has a preference for deferring
because we would like to hear comments from the public from other areas of our
County as well. So if there's no objections from the Committee, the Chair will
defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT: PONT ANILLA, TAVARES
AND MOLINA)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Members.

ITEM NO. 21:

MOLOKAI LANDFILL (C.C. 03-277)

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we'll now go to our second item for today which is Item 21
having to do with the Molokai landfill, and again from the Public Works
Department we have Director Coloma-Agaran, as well as the Solid Waste
Division Chief Mr. Harder here to share their thoughts on this matter. And just to
share some background information on this with the public, the Committee is in
receipt of a correspondence from Council member Mateo, as well as Molokai
residents, expressing concerns about the stockpiling of materials and potential
health and safety hazards at the Naiwa Landfill.
Members, today the Committee received an overview on the status and future
expansion of the landfill, the stockpiling materials at the landfill, recycling and
co-composting efforts. And earlier today, Members, we did our site inspection of
the landfill as well as the recycling center and prior to hearing from the Director,
Mr. Coloma-Agaran, as well as the Solid Waste Division Chief, I would first like to
ask if Councilman Mateo has some opening comments.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Real briefly because we all had
the opportunity of going to the landfill and actually seeing that, seeing the sites.
Chairman, I guess a couple of months ago I received a letter from Mrs. Medeiros
that really started the interest in taking a look at the Molokai's, the Molokai
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landfill. And, in addition, they received, our office received several phone calls of
complaints regarding the condition of the landfill and inquiries as to where they're
gonna, how they're gonna deal with the problems, whether or not the problems
was going to be addressed, what kind of timetable were we looking at. And in
addition to that, we received information that the Environmental Protection
Agency had some issues with the Molokai Landfill. And all of these items just
kept, kept compounding upon each other and then when you drive our main
highway, then you can actually see the landfill area with it's cars stacked up and
it's white appliances stacked up. It is time to, for us to start addressing the
problem. And with that, Chair, I will just wait for the Department's comments.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo. At this time, the Chair will turn the mike
over to either Mr. Harder or Mr. Coloma-Agaran, whoever would like to go first
please take the mike. Mr. Harder. I'm sorry, Mr. Agaran.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN: I think I'm just gonna go ahead and have John go ahead and
make a presentation on what's planned. I'll just start though by first thanking the
Council for approving the supplemental budget. That will help us to put out a
contract to cleanup the existing piles of scrap metal. The bids have been issued
and proposals are due the first week of April. And then once the contract's
finalized, we're hoping sometime this summer to be able to get a lot of the
material off the island. With that, let me turn this over to John, and he can give
you a brief overview of what's planned for the landfill and other solid waste
operations for the island.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director. Mr. Harder, you can sit if you feel
more comfortable sitting too, Mr. Harder, if you like or you can stand. Take the
stand literally. Go ahead.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN: John, do you need these notes? You need these?
MR. HARDER: I got it, I got it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As the Director mentioned,·
we have requested and obtained approval for $500,000 in supplemental funding
from the County Council to clean up the existing piles of scrap metal at the Naiwa
Landfill. This is ... to those of you that haven't been directly involved in the
process, it was quite a long and involved and arduous process. Actually, when I
came on board in 2001, a contract had been let to clean up the landfill. However,
the bid on the contract was $370,000, but only $100,000 had been appropriated.
After that contractor failed to make good on his efforts, we tried to move into a
grant program with Community Work Day; however, funding was lacking and
then we went through a transition in Administrations. We tried to go back again
last year and obtain additional funding, but, as you all know, there was a lot of
budget constraints last year. And so last· December we finally put together a
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supplemental budget request for this project and also for the Hana Landfill, which
has a similar pile of scrap.
So it's been a long arduous process. and I guess we feel good that we see, see
some~success coming through here. We have the funds, bids went out the 1st of
February, the first week, part of February. They're due the first ... excuse me,
the first part of March. They're due the April 6. After the bids come in we
anticipate probably another two to three months for us to complete the contract,
go through all the paperwork and then for the contractor to mobilize all his
equipment and get it on the island. And so we're hoping that some time, possibly
in June, we'll have a contractor on island to start the cleanup.
I think it was mentioned by Mr. Crabbe, the contract will include the removal of
the tires. the batteries, the fluids, all the other materials that have been brought in
over time. One of the, the reasons and I think most of you probably understand it
to one level or another, but one of the reasons that this situation exists now and
has existed in the past is that there is no other facility or, or anybody with
capabilities for handling this kind of scrap metal here on Molokai. In the Maui
proper, we do have Maui Scrap Metal, and while our landfill isn't full of scrap,
their yard really looks like the Molokai Landfill 'cause they haven't moved much
scrap off in the last few years either.
But our plan is once we get this site cleaned up, we have included $100,000 in
the Fiscal '05 Budget request, which we hope the Council supports, which would
allow us to set up a permanent program to manage this material rather than
coming back retroactively every five years and having to c1eanup--

?: Uh-huh.
MR. HARDER: --leaky fluids and, and batteries and that type of thing. We're hoping to
find a local contractor who could come out maybe every couple weeks or once a
month and residents could, would come in stockpile the material neatly and the
contractor could come in when there's enough volume of it, process the fluids,
remove the Freon and then ready it for shipment off-island. Hopefully, once we
can get that kind of a program started, the situation we have out there now won't
reoccur.
One thing about that, though, is that it will require assistance from the community
in properly separating materials. One of the biggest problems we're facing in this
cleanup is when people have gone to throw their scrap in the scrap pile and
they've got some trash in their truck, they decide to throw the trash in there too
instead of taking the trash over to the landfill. We are piled, the pile which is
supposedly just scrap metals, full of bags of trash, old mattresses, couches, a lot
of things that the contractor will have to pick out and leave behind at an

PUBLIC WORKS AND TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 22, 2004 (Molokai)

additional cost. So whatever the new program is and however it is specifically
operated, it's gonna require additional responsibilities from the local community.
There's a few other things regarding the landfill I wanted to touch on and this is
kind of relating to Councilman Mateo's letter to the Department of I guess it was
in February, and also some proposals that are currently before the State
Legislature. As far as landfill capacity, once the existing scrap pile is removed,
we'll be initiating the design of what we call Cell 3 at the landfill. Currently, we
have requested funds in next year's budget for the design of Cell 3 and hopefully
in Fiscal '06, we'll propose funding and initiate construction.
Right now we have about two to three years life left in Cells 1 and 2, that's the
existing waste disposal area. The development of Cell 3 should provide an
additional five years and then once Cell 3 is brought up to the level of 1 or 2, we'll
probably put one more lift across the whole bunch.
The conceptual plan for the facility includes three additional cells, 4, 6, and 6,
alongside of 1, 2, and 3 in the area east of the current cells and that should
eventually provide for a total of at least 30 years of additional capacity. So we do
not really have a problem of immediate or of long-term capacity. Our problem
really is in a short-term problem with management that we need to work on and
improve. And, in fact, the landfill is itself is probably pretty well handled. It's the
other activities that are going around, around the outside and especially the
scrap metal that are gonna require our attention.
There's been a lot of discussion concerning improving recycling and other
diversion projects here on Molokai. A plan was recently put together by the
Maui, Molokai Community Services Council. There's been some questions that
have come from Councilman Mateo's Office, and from the State Legislature. I
feel that there's, there's some areas where some significant impacts could be
attained in the short term. One would be a complete ban of scrap metal that is
banned from landfilling it and setting up as I said a ongoing process to keep it out
of the landfill and process it as it comes in.
A second one would be an aggressive composting program for the green waste.
Right now we have a small ...what we call a tub grinder, which we use to grind
basically the residential green waste, the stuff that's small under two or three
inches in size, and that's about all that little grinder will handle. In fact, it breaks
down pretty regularly even with that kind of stuff. A lot of bigger material comes
in that could be kept out of the landfill if we had an adequate program. We do
not see this as primarily a County operation, but something where maybe a
private sector business person here on Molokai under a grant from the County
could, could start taking this green waste and develop a viable business
marketing the, mulching the composts on the island.
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The final project I think would, could really help us here in Molokai is, is recycling
all the commercial cardboard. Though we do recycle cardboard voluntarily at the
facility. It's really limited and it's only those people that really want to take that
extra work and bring it in. A number of communities have, including Honolulu,
have banned commercial cardboard from disposal. And because the bulk of the
cardboard that's generated in the community comes from the commercial sector,
I think you can see a big, big increase in, in diversion.
Also, if we started getting some larger volumes of cardboard being diverted, it
would warrant more regular shipment of that material off-island. Those of you
that had visited the recycling facility can see that a lot of that cardboard is just
sitting and weathering to the point where it's probably no longer, you know,
marketable to .. .for recycling. We need to up the generation rate if we're going
to be shipping off on a regular basis.
However, you must understand that even these efforts will cost significantly more
to implement on M%kai than on Maui and to be successful, they're gonna
include, they must include like some form of community-based implementation
strategy.
As I mentioned, the Molokai Community Services Council has
developed an aggressive if somewhat optimistic diversion plan and the Council
may want to take a look at that plan, and, and they use the work already
completed as a starting point if they're looking at funding some small pilot
projects.
I guess one last thing I'd like to touch on is the recycling operation. While it is a
very small island like Molokai--I think a well run and well equipped little
facility--we are having, as I mentioned, processes with shipping that material
off-island. A lot of that material hasn't been shipped. I know the aluminum and
cardboard in two or three years, and it's just because there's not large volumes.
One of the things we would hope is if we can set up a regular program to
manage the scrap metal. Once we've cleaned up the site there, that the regular
shipment of that scrap metal would allow us to fill in some boards with a few bails
of cardboard, a few bails of aluminum on a regular basis and help us with the
shipping.
I think one thing I'd like to touch on because I'm not really sure where the
community or what the community feels about this is that currently the State
Legislature is considering a multi-faceted bill regarding solid waste on Molokai
and one of the issues there is funding the establishment of two refuse and
recycling drop sites on Molokai. We're still a little bit unsure about what is
proposed, whether we're talking about· manned sites, whether we'd be
purchasing property, whether we'd have to, you know, develop environmental
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assessments and permit and all that kind of stuff. And, again, the question is
who would operate the facilities.
We, as the Solid Waste Division, we do not have a major force here on Molokai.
I have been dependent upon Highways Division to provide us a lot of help. And
they're oftentimes pretty, stretched pretty thin. So, basically, to continue this
conversation as a point of starting the conversation here with the people of
Molokai, one of the things, if this program does make it through the Legislature
this year, we would look at the possibility of contracting with a local hauler or a
nonprofit that could man a minimal site in a parking lot or school parking lot or
something like that just on weekends at least to see how the participation grows.
They could provide a mUlti-compartment recycling bin similar to the bins we now
have at a couple of the schools, and people could come on Saturdays, bring their
stuff, and then the contractor would haul it away. This would simplify a lot of the
issues such as permitting, environmental assessments, purchase of land,
fencing, that kind of thing, and it would also minimize some of the dumping at the
site if we just did a, you know, one day a week thing. So, I guess to start that
conversation with the Council and with the community, those are kind of some of
my ideas.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Harder. Committee Members, any questions for
Mr. Harder at this time? Okay. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Harder, the initial monies that
you referenced, which is the $500,000 to help start getting rid of the scrap metal
and the appliances, yeah. I guess, you know, with what we saw there today,
because I don't think there's been any shipping out of anything from that dump
for the last eight years, can you, you know, can you tell me what kind of a dent 8,
500,000 will make?
MR. HARDER: It is difficult to say, not because of the volume of material which is
conSiderable, but more as a couple of the, of the proposed vendors that have
been looking at this project, including Mr. Crabbe had mentioned, is the amount
of contamination. How much work it's gonna take to clean it up. Three years
ago the bid came in to clean up that material, that site at $370,000. Since that
time, there's been a lot more material hauled in. But the other thing, another
thing that's changed is at that time, the price for scrap in Honolulu was either
zero or around $5 a ton. The price for scrap in Asia has gone up since then, so
the price of scrap in Honolulu is also higher, closer to 25 or $30 a ton. So once
the scrap is cleaned up and the garbage and mattresses are pulled out, we're
hoping that the value of the scrap would cover the cost of shipping. So the
estimate of $500,000 I think is fairly close. If a price comes in slightly over that,
we'll look to see what we can do to find that additional money. If it comes in
significantly over that, we may have to step back and, and look at only handling
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the worst material, you know, the majority of the material that's the problem
material first.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. You mentioned, you mentioned that there would,
you're looking at $100,000 request from FY '05, and I guess monies for design
for Cell 3 in FY '05 Budget as well?
MR. HARDER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And that'll be coming in as under a separate request
because there is a, there is a plan that we have to actually address the whole
landfill versus just specific areas of the landfill.
MR. HARDER: The two request, the $100,000 is part of the landfill operating budget
because this would be a regular line item we hope that would perpetuate, you
know, so we would keep that operation going. The design request is in our CIP
request, so that would be a separate item because that's capital improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Mateo. Committee, before we have any
more questions responded to from the Public Works personnel, it is four o'clock.
At this time, the Chair would like to take a brief break. We shall reconvene at
4:10p.m. Meeting in recess. " .(gaveJ).. . • . (CHANGE TAPE) • ••
RECESS: 4:00 p.m.
RECONVENE: 4:14 p.m.
CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel).. The Public Works and Traffic Committee Meeting for
March 22 nd is now back in session. Thank you very much, Members, for that
break. We last left off with Mr. Harder, the Solid Waste Division Chief responding
to a question from Member Mateo. Committee Members, do you have any
questions or comments for the Department at this time? Okay. The Chair has
just one question for Mr. Harder and that has to do with community-based
organizations.
How do you see ... if you can just briefly share with the
Committee, how do you see, can you give any specifics how community-based
organizations ... what their role would be in the implementation of solid waste
concerns here on Molokai? I think you touched on that earlier in your remarks.
Can you cite any specific way they can help the Department?
MR. HARDER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes. One of the issues throughout Maui,
throughout the State, is probably the lack of education, expanding public
awareness of the issues and the problems, you know, regarding solid waste and
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recycling. But that's especially true here on Molokai where we have little or no
presence. Also, when you work through community-based organizations, I
guess, there's more give and take in the conversations, rather than just like the
County telling people what to do and the people either accepting or not accepting
it. So you get the public to take ownership of a plan rather than think that it's
some other, some upper entities' plan imposed on them. So, I think that that's
the, the advantage of using community-based organizations.
The other one here on Molokai is that the Molokai Community Services Council
is the only people I've really been talking to lately, under a Federal grant and
using some expertise from the Rural Community Assistance Corporation, has
come up with a plan. And, as I said, I think the plan is a little overly optimistic,
but it's well thought out and it did include an awful lot of community input. So if
the Council were to look at that plan and look at selecting the most viable
elements in that plan, I think those would be things that had come from the
community and would have a greater chance of success.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Harder. Any other last questions
for Mr. Harder? The Chair would like to ask Member Mateo very quickly and as
part of sitting on, being from the solid waste task force, you had mentioned to me
that there was a proposed pilot program forthe landfill here on Molokai. Can you
briefly share with the Committee what was the outcome of that?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I've been advised that last week it
died. But, you know, this community sent over 300 testimonials in support of it,
which was an incredible number on our last minute, and it just wasn't successful
this time around. So now we know what we need to do the next session. And it
was for a demonstration project using Molokai as the demonstration, and we put
a price tag to it at 1 point, $1.2 million to that particular bill that would have
helped with the construction of Cells 3 and 4. We would have a recycling
component in it as well as the inclusion of using whatever technologies available
in the State to help deal with Molokai's problems. But it didn't, it didn't make it as
of last week Friday. Thanks, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Councilmember Mateo. The Chair seeing no other
questions for the Solid Waste Division Chief, we'll close this matter by
recommending to the Committee that this item be deferred, being that the Solid
Waste Division Chief has told us that hopefully in June there will be some
removal of some of the tires, batteries, and whatever else in that landfill to begin.
I'd initially considered filing this communication; however, in the interest of
monitoring the situation, working the Administration, I feel it's best that we defer
and monitor what's going on here as well as the issue regarding scrap metal
removal. So if there are no objections from the Committee, the Chair will defer
this item.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT: PONTANILLA, TAVARES
AND MOLINA)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Members.
ITEM NO. 23:

DRAINAGE AND FLOODING CONCERNS ON MOLOKAI

(C.C.04-46)

CHAIR MOLINA: Our final item for today is Item 23, which has to with drainage and
flooding concerns here on Molokai, and I can't think of a more appropriate day to
address this particular item. The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence
again from Council member Mateo, as well as Molokai residents regarding the
flooding that occurs during heavy rainstorms. Apparently, the rainwater runoff
causes severe damage to both public and private property in low-lying areas
throughout Molokai. During our site inspection today, the Committee toured six
sites, both in public and private areas, to look at the damaged caused from the
storm water runoff. Today we received comments from the Department of Public
Works and Waste Management on efforts to address the flooding concerns and
again prior to hearing from the Department, the Chair would like to yield the
microphone to Councilmember Mateo for his comments.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. My only comments at this point is,
one, to express my gratitude to the Chairman of Public Works for being able to
bring these Molokai issues to Molokai and allow our people to provide their
mana' 0 and concerns on the flooding issue. And for the last couple of hours, we
have had the opportunity of going to the various sites taking a look and talking
with some of the residents that had been affected by the flooding, and I think we
have about covered it to that extent and I await the Department's comments.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo. At this time, the Chair will yield the
microphone to Director Coloma-Agaran for an overview of this matter.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I also have here Lloyd Lee from our
Engineering Division, and he can probably comment on a couple of issues.
While you were doing some of your site inspections, we also did go up and take
a look at other areas that are affected by the different projects that we have. On
the wall and I think in front of some of you is a map showing the master plan, the
master drainage plan for Kaunakakai that was developed a number of years ago.
As you can see from the map, there are six separate drainage systems that need
to be developed. So far the County has constructed System A which is a length
from the hospital area to Kaunakakai Stream.
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And currently, we're trying to complete System B, which brings our drainage
system to protect the water from flowing into the town area. You'll note that
System B is the outlet for System B into the ocean off of Kaunakakai Place. That
is the contract that's been put on hold because of the discovery of petroleum
products and near the right-of-way. And so we don't know when that portion will
be completed. That's gonna depend on what the Department of Health requires.
However, we are continuing construction of the upper portion and also B2 on the
map.
The other, the other portion that right now is actively being looked at by the
Corps of Engineers is the Kapaakea Flood Control System, which is to the far
right of that map. The other portions of the drainage master plan that have not
yet been designed or funded are at System C, which we estimate will cost about
$3.5 million. ~ System D, which will cost approximately 6 million and System E
about 3.8 million. Based on the sites that you were visiting today, what you'd be
looking at is System D. If those improvements were made, that would help
alleviate some of the drainage issues that you saw today in the different sites that
you visited.
One other thing that you should note is there is a 3,000 foot drainage ditch
above--is this the Ranch subdivision?--

?: Yeah.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN: --the Ranch subdivision on Molokai Ranchlands. That and
one of the things that happened in January was a breach of that berm of that
ditch, and so you did have a lot of water coming down through the Ranch
subdivision and flowing down to the low-lying areas towards the coast. We,
Mr. Lee did get a chance to speak briefly to Mr. Edwards at the Ranch and one of
the things we're going to be arranging to look at is getting at least a right-of-entry
so that from now on at least our highways people can get on the Ranchlands if
we need to, to make some improvements on that berm in emergencies.
Long term, we may want to talk to them about getting a drainage easement in
that area because making sure that drainage, that drainage ditch continues into
the stream and doesn't get breached is gonna be important to all the systems
that we have down below. With that, let me ask if Mr. Lee has any other
comments that he wants to add before we try to answer any questions that the
Council has.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Lee.
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MR. LEE: I'm Lloyd Lee, Engineering Division Chief for Public Works. Basically, the
complaint we had in January was flooding in the lower areas of Kaunakakai
Town, Oki Place. The Fire Department had about six inches of water flowing
through the Fire Department. The County Buildings, we had water. The Police
Department Dispatch Office had water coming into the building. But through our
investigations and with Steve Arce's help, we found out that the ditch above the
Molokai Ranch Estates basically was breached and, therefore, the water that
was supposed to be diverting into the stream came through the subdivision and
that was the major cause of the flooding. In other words the water, the system
wasn't designed to handle that water from the ditch.
So what Steve Arce did with his crew was get up into Molokai Ranch private
property and replaced the berm, the dirt berm. And also he upsized the existing
culvert, they have there, a 36-inch culvert. They put a 40-inch culvert in. But I
did talk to Harold Edwards this morning, and he doesn't have any staff to actually
maintain that diversion ditch. So he's willing to, I guess, turn the maintenance
and the control of the berm over to the County so we can do a more permanent
diversion ditch. Something that we did on System A. We took it for granted that
the basin had been maintained, but it has not been maintained properly. So
anyway, Harold did agree. In fact he's coming to tonight's meeting. I'll be talking
to him tonight about getting a right-of-entry document executed as soon as
possible so we can have some survey done to find out exactly what we have
there and what we have to maintain.
And then from there, we'll do an easement document, a drainage easement
document and accept the County, accept the County Council, ask the County
Council to accept the drainage easement, per se, so we can do a proper
maintenance. And most likely, similar to drainage A system has come up with a
more permanent structure for the diversion ditch. And I don't have any estimates
how much that would cost but 3,000 feet would be over half a million dollars
easy. So, but, anyway, we'll give you guys more information when we receive it.
That's all I have to say.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. :Thank you, Mr. Lee. Committee Members, any questions for
either Director Coloma-Agaran or Mr. Lee? And we also have from the
Department here on Molokai Mr. Arce as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Lee, then if the damage of the
flooding was initially caused by that breach that was really Molokai Ranch's
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responsibility to tend, then they, the damages that the County have incurred, is
there a way of addressing those damages with Molokai Ranch as well?
MR. LEE: Well, all I'm saying here is making a statement that it's one of the causes.
Now whether it's the major cause or not, I'm fairly sure they have a pro-rata
share of the damages because of the breach. But I cannot say that was the
actual cause. I know that's one of the causes, one of the major causes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Committee Members, any last questions
for the Department before the Chair gives his recommendation? Okay. Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out, Lloyd, if our areas--'cause we
have this problem too over on Maui--when a drainage way is really the
responsibility of the landowner because they're using these things to outfall into
the ocean and then they don't maintain it and something happens, what is the
recourse or do we not have a recourse?
MR. LEE: Under HRS, the private owner is responsible for maintaining natural
waterways or diversions. However, under HRS also, the law puts the burden on
the County to go after the owners to maintain those waterways. And if they don't,
we give them due notice, we would go in and maintain it and assess the owner
whatever cost for maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks very much because I know that that is really a
serious concern of a lot of these drainage ways. How would we find out, you
know, specifically, are these designated according to the County or is there a
State record, these different drainage ways? Is there like a list or would it just be
kept on file with your Department?
MR. LEE: There's no list, per se, as drainage ways. It's just based on topography of
the land and whether it flows or not. The State Department, I guess, of Ag and
also DLNR, they do have I guess what we call stream ways or natural waterways
and also deal with the Corps of Engineers to if it's flowing rivers or stream ways,
they, they keep a record of those stream ways, but the County does not.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN: Although, let me point out that our Highways Division would
basically know which drainage ways we are maintaining. As far as whether
some of the other drainage ways are the responsibility of some State Department
or the private, or some private entity, that we wouldn't have a list of.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks very much.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Member Johnson. Any other questions for the
Department? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. I guess this would be for the local office. Is
there a maintenance plan for existing drainage ways that we, that normally flood?
MR. LEE: Normally, if the private owner, and a lot of these areas right now shown on
the master plan is owned by private owners, per se, joint ownerships through the
resident subdivision. It's not actually, we don't have any drainage easements,
per se. Then the responsibility becomes on the owners. The only problem is, is
that there's lot of... not only in Molokai, but even on Maui, there's lot of
encroachments into drainage ways that basically we don't find out until such time
there are complaints of property damages. Then we go out there and take a look
at it. We find there's fences, walls, trees, and everything else in drainage ways.
And if we do like the Director said, if we are maintaining drainage ways, you
normally gonna have an easement document that we have an inventory on or
drainage maps to show our maintenance people what drainage ways they
maintain, as far as part of the responsibilities of the Highways Division. So in this
case, Steve Arce with the Highways Division on Molokai would have a list of
drainage ways that he would maintain as, you know, owners of those drainage
ways as far as through easements.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, and I guess Mr. Arce did indicate that there is
an ongoing schedule of when you clean out your drainage ways. Thank you very
much and, Mr. Chair, just before I yield the mike, I'd just like to reiterate again
that even though the issue of flooding on this island has really been one that
involved or impacted the bulk, the majority of our community, the efforts of Public
Works has been incredible to our people. And they just need to be commended
for the small crew that they have and their limited equipment that's available to
them. So we really need to recommend, to commend them for a job well done.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Committee Members, last chance for
questions for the Department here today in Molokai. Okay. Seeing none, the
Chair, first of all, will thank Council member Mateo who has been keeping a very
close watch on these items that we've had today. So the Chair would like to
express his mahalos to Member Mateo for his efforts. And being that this matter
is an ongoing concern here on Molokai, rather than file this communication, the
Chair's preference is to keep this matter open to get updates from the
Department as it relates to the Kaunakakai drainage master plan, as well as
other areas of the island and revisit this matter at a future date. So if there are
no objections from the Committee, the Chair will be deferring this item.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members. Any announcements,
Members? Okay. We do have a Budget meeting at six o'clock tonight. So
please be here for that if you have any concerns with the County budget. And on
behalf of the Committee Members and all of our other Council Members, we'd
like to thank you all for taking time out of your busy schedule to share your
thoughts and mana '0 with the Committee as it relates to these items through our
Public Works Meeting. Meeting is adjourned. . . .(gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

4:32 p.m.
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